
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 MINUTES  

 
The Salisbury-Wicomico Planning and Zoning Commission met 

in regular session on September 15, 2011 in the Council Chambers of the 
Government Office Building, Room 301, with the following persons in 
attendance: 

 
COMMISSION MEMBERS: 
Charles “Chip” Dashiell, Chairman 
James W. Magill (Absent) 
Gail Bartkovich 
Glen Robinson  
Scott Rogers  
Tim Spies  
Jacob Day (Absent) 
 
CITY/COUNTY OFFICIALS: 
Mary Phillips, County Public Works Department 
Larry Dodd, Lt., Salisbury Fire Department 
Gary Hales, City Public Works Department 
Maureen Lanigan, Assistant County Attorney 
 
PLANNING STAFF: 
Jack Lenox, Director 
Gloria Smith, Planner 
Keith Hall, Planner 
Beverly Tull, Recording Secretary 

 



SW PLANNING COMMISSION - MINUTES – September 15, 2011  PAGE 2 

The meeting was called to order at 1:30 p.m. by Mr. Dashiell, 
Chairman. 

 
Minutes: 
 

Upon a motion by Mrs. Bartkovich, seconded by Mr. Robinson, 
and duly carried, the Commission APPROVED the minutes of the August 11, 2011 
meeting as submitted. 

 
#WP-1103 SITE PLAN APPROVAL – Farmers Bank of Willards – To 

Reconstruct a Nonconforming Residence – 318 Tilghman 
Road – Light Business and Institutional District – M-39; G-13; P-
388. 

 
Mr. Brock Parker and Mr. Kevin Kinnamon came forward.  Mrs. 

Gloria Smith presented the Staff Report.  The applicants propose reconstruction 
of a nonconforming residence.  The structure is nonconforming with regard to 
setbacks.  In addition the site is nonconforming in that it contains three 
apartment units.  The residence contained one unit and the attached garage 
contains two apartment units.  The LB1 District requires Planning Commission 
review and approval. 

 
Mr. Parker stated that the previous owner had some hardships 

and the Bank took the property over.  They are trying to get it fixed so that they 
can get some of their money back out of it.  The property was falling in on itself 
when the Bank took it back due to termite damage. 

 
Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if this property was on City 

services because a septic is shown on the plat.  Mr. Parker responded that the 
property was on well and septic.  Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if the property 
meets the Health Department requirements.  Mr. Parker responded that the 
Health Department will have to review the project, which is also a requirement 
of the Public Works Department in order to obtain a building permit.  Mrs. 
Bartkovich questioned if Health Department review and approval should be 



SW PLANNING COMMISSION - MINUTES – September 15, 2011  PAGE 3 

added as a condition of approval.  Mrs. Smith responded that the Commission 
could add it as a condition. 

Upon a motion by Mrs. Bartkovich, seconded by Mr. Robinson, 
and duly carried, the Commission APPROVED the Site Plan for the Farmers Bank 
of Willards for reconstruction of a nonconforming residence at 318 Tilghman 
Road, subject to the following Conditions of Approval: 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 
1. This site shall be developed in accordance with the approved Site Plan.  

Minor plan adjustments may be approved by the Wicomico County 
Zoning Administrator.  However, a change of use shall be considered a 
new use and shall be reviewed and approved by the Commission. 

2. This approval is subject to further review and approval by the Wicomico 
County Department of Public Works, if required. 

3. This approval is subject to further review and approval by the Wicomico 
County Health Department. 

 
COUNTY SUBDIVISION PLAT/SKETCH PLATS: 
 
Sandywood Estates – Extension to Record – 16 Lots – Forest Grove Road – M-40; 
P-45; G-3. 
 

Mr. Brock Parker came forward.  Mrs. Gloria Smith presented 
the Staff Report.  The applicants have requested a one year extension of time 
for recordation of the Final Plat approved for Sandywood Estates subdivision on 
September 11, 2008.  The Subdivision Regulations require a Final Plat to be 
recorded in the Land Records within three years of the Final Plat approval.  A 
one year extension of time would allow the applicants until September 11, 2012 
for recordation.  The engineers have indicated that in the current economic 
climate, obtaining the letter of credit to bond the road improvements has 
proven an arduous process. 

 
Mr. Parker stated that this was a residential subdivision on 

Forest Grove Road and Route 50.  This project began in 2006.  There is a final plat 
now which needs Public Works signature; however, they need a bond to sign 
and record the plat.  Mr. Parker stated that he hoped to be able to obtain a 
bond from the Bank in the spring and get the plat recorded so they could begin 
construction on the subdivision. 



SW PLANNING COMMISSION - MINUTES – September 15, 2011  PAGE 4 

 
Upon a motion by Mr. Rogers, seconded by Mr. Robinson, the 

Commission APPROVED a one-year extension of time for recordation of the Final 
Plat for Sandywood Estates subdivision.  The time for recordation would then 
expire on September 11, 2012. 

 
#SP-0513-11A REVSIED CERTIFICATE OF DESIGN & SITE PLAN APPROVAL -  

Residences at River’s Edge – Fitzwater Street – Riverfront 
Redevelopment Multi-Use District #2 – M-106; G-21; P-1109. 

 
Mr. Richard Goodman and Mr. John Hamilton came forward.  

Mrs. Gloria Smith presented the Staff Report.  At the Commission’s October 20, 
2005 meeting, a Final Certificate of Design and Site Plan was approved for a 
103-unit townhouse/condominium project.  At the May 18, 2006 meeting, the 
Commission approved a Revised Certificate of Design and Site Plan approval 
for a 116-unit project.  On that plan, the townhouses had been eliminated and 
replaced with a loft building.  All units were to be condominiums.  The 
Department of Building, Permits and Inspections issued a building permit for the 
building labeled “Southview” on December 18, 2006.  Based on their inspection 
records and notices to the contractor regarding expiration of the permit due to 
inactivity, it appears that construction stopped approximately March 2008. 

 
KGC Development, LLC, has submitted a Revised Site Plan for 

development of this site with an apartment development, including covered 
and open parking, and retail space.  The submission package included a Site 
Plan, floor plans for two of the buildings, and a summary of proposed changes 
to the project.  The Plan is very Preliminary in nature as the applicants are 
seeking Commission input regarding the proposed modifications to the 
development.  

 
Mr. Goodman stated that they had received a schematic 

plan of the original approval and wanted to work with the existing plan.  He 
stated that they would like to amend the South building to have 50 two-
bedroom units instead of 33 three-bedroom units and amend the Mooring 
building from 56 units to 64 units, all using the same footprint.  Due to the parking 
deficit, the pool and cabana area will be deleted to provide additional parking.  
This will still leave a deficit of approximately 25 spaces.  Mr. Goodman asked for 
suggestions on how to handle the parking shortage.  He added that they would 
be utilizing the existing landscaping plan. 



SW PLANNING COMMISSION - MINUTES – September 15, 2011  PAGE 5 

 
Mr. Hamilton stated that utilizing the original footprint seemed 

to be the most simplistic way to proceed with the project.  He questioned if the 
sidewalk on the East side of the property could be shifted 10 or 12 feet to 
achieve more parking. 

 
Mr. Dashiell stated that the Commission was treating this as a 

concept plan and wouldn’t take a vote but would offer suggestions on the 
project.  He added that this would be an improvement to the property. 

 
Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if the existing building was the 

SouthView.  Mr. Hamilton responded in the affirmative.  Mrs. Bartkovich 
questioned if a structural engineer had checked the building for soundness 
since it had been there since 2008.  Mr. Hamilton responded that the building 
had been evaluated by a structural engineer and the steel will need to be 
recoated but the existing shell will be utilized.  Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if there 
were plans to tidy up the property.  Mr. Hamilton responded that there had 
been someone contracted to keep the property up.  They didn’t realize that the 
contractor hadn’t been keeping up the property so a new landscaper has been 
contracted and should be on site in the next few days to clean the property.  
Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if there would be a dumpster area.  Mr. Rogers 
stated that the dumpster area was shown on the plat on the east side of the 
property.  Mrs. Bartkovich stated that apartment buildings require recycling 
containers.  Mr. Spies added that there would be at least three (3) containers 
needed for recycling.  Mrs. Bartkovich stated that she had concern regarding 
Fire Department access.  Mr. Hamilton responded that they had a letter from 
the Fire Department from the original approval that they could access the 
complex.  Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if there was enough handicapped 
parking.  Mr. Rogers stated that all the handicapped spaces were van 
accessible.  Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if there was a landscaping plan.  Mrs. 
Smith responded that there was an existing landscaping plan. 

 
Mr. Spies questioned if there were large shade trees.  Mr. 

Goodman responded that the original plan has trees from the street to the river 
on the west side of the property.  Mrs. Smith read the original plant list.  Mr. Spies 
requested that the developers be aware of how close to the water they were in 
regards to filtration from the trees.  Mr. Spies questioned the pervious surfaces.  
Mr. Hamilton responded that there shouldn’t be any changes to the pervious 
surfaces.  Mr. Rogers questioned if they had considered using pervious surfaces 
for parking.  Mr. Hamilton responded that they had spoken with a contractor in 
regards to pervious surfaces. 

 



SW PLANNING COMMISSION - MINUTES – September 15, 2011  PAGE 6 

Mrs. Bartkovich questioned the bulkhead.  Mr. Hamilton 
responded that they understood that there were certain types of plants that 
were required for bulkheads. 

Mr. Rogers questioned if they were going to continue with the 
commercial aspect of the plan.  Mr. Goodman responded that they would like 
to try for approximately five (5) commercial units.  Mr. Rogers responded that it 
would be tricky to get delivery access for those units. 

 
Mr. Dashiell reiterated that they would need to present a 

preliminary plan for the Commission to vote on. 
 
Mr. Goodman questioned if there was a way to obtain a 

variance for 15 to 20 parking spaces if they were able to get additional parking 
on the east side of the Mooring building.  Mr. Dashiell responded that they 
should pay attention to what is required by the Code and then discuss a 
variance with the Staff. 

 
Mr. Lenox requested clarification if there was still parking 

planned underneath the buildings.  Mr. Hamilton responded in the affirmative.  
Mr. Lenox suggested that the developers try for a parking lease agreement with 
the adjacent property owners to rectify the parking shortage.  Mr. Hamilton 
responded that he had spoken with the City about the adjacent property.  Mr. 
Lenox clarified that those discussions had been with City Administration and that 
anything regarding the adjacent parcel would have to go before the City 
Council.  Mr. Lenox stated that the City would like to see the project proceed.  
He advised the developers that staying as close to possible with the approved 
plan would prevent any problems with the new stormwater management 
regulations. 

 
The developers were advised that a Preliminary Plan should 

be submitted that addresses the following issues: 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 
1. The applicants shall submit a Revised Site Plan that indicates how the 

parking deficit and adequate access to all parking will be achieved. 
2. Parking islands shall be shown as required by the Code. 
3. Calculations regarding building coverage on the site shall be included. 
4. A Preliminary Plan shall be submitted for Critical Area Staff review.  Prior to 

issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall comply with all 
requirements of the Chesapeake Bay Critical Area Program.  A Certificate 
of Compliance shall be obtained prior to any site disturbance. 

5. A Concept Plan shall be submitted for Salisbury Public Works Department 
review and the appropriate concept meeting.  Final Plan approval will be 



SW PLANNING COMMISSION - MINUTES – September 15, 2011  PAGE 7 

subject to further review and approval by the Salisbury Public Works 
Department. 

 
#SP-1102 PALEOCHANNEL PLAN – Dr. Brian J. Kaputa, represented by 

Regional Builders, Inc. – East Naylor Mill Road – General 
Commercial District – M-119; G-11; P-240; L-1. 

 
Mr. Don Dashiell came forward.  The applicants have 

submitted a Site Plan for development of a portion of this site with a 2,565 sq. ft. 
dental office in the City’s Paleochannel District.  Section 17.100.040 of the 
Salisbury Municipal Code requires approval by the Planning Commission of a 
Comprehensive Site Plan for any development within the 
Paleochannel/Wellhead Protection District. 

 
Mr. Don Dashiell stated that the owner understands that if 

further development occurs that he must come back to the Commission. 
 
Mrs. Bartkovich questioned why the right-of-way stated 

Wicomico County when surrounding it was City of Salisbury.  Mrs. Smith 
responded that this is a pipestem that connects to other County properties to 
prevent a County enclave.  Mr. Lenox added that this was a private easement.  
Mr. Don Dashiell added that the builders of VP project had been maintaining 
the right-of-way. 

 
Mr. Spies questioned if specific accommodations had been 

made for gray water.  Mr. Don Dashiell responded that the new dental 
equipment is waterless.  Mrs. Bartkovich added that the new digital x-rays also 
don’t require the use of silver anymore. 

 
Upon a motion by Mrs. Bartkovich, seconded by Mr. Robinson, 

and duly carried, the Commission APPROVED the Paleochannel Site Plan for Dr. 
Brian J. Kaputa, as submitted, subject to the following Conditions of Approval: 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 
1. The site shall be developed in accordance with the approved 

Comprehensive Site Plan.  Minor plan adjustments may be approved 
jointly by the Directors of the Building, Permits and Inspections and 
Planning and Zoning Departments. 



SW PLANNING COMMISSION - MINUTES – September 15, 2011  PAGE 8 

2. All signage installed shall comply with the requirements of the Salisbury 
Municipal Code with respect to sign surface area, or be submitted for 
review and approval by the Commission. 

3. Further development of this site will require review and approval by the 
Salisbury Planning Commission as required by the Code. 

4. This approval is subject to further review and approval by the Salisbury 
Public Works Department. 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE MATTER: 
 
Hidden Pond – Findings of Fact – 22 Lots – Walnut Tree Road – M-47; G-19; P-782. 
 

Mrs. Gloria Smith presented the Findings of Fact for Hidden 
Pond. 

 
Mr. Lenox explained that Ms. Lukacs had presented an 

opposition to Finding #10.  He gave the opposition letter to Ms. Lanigan for 
review.  Mr. Dashiell requested that Ms. Lanigan comment on the action of the 
Findings of Fact. 

 
Ms. Lanigan explained that she had changed Finding of Fact 

#10 after the mail out was done because there had been a previous issue with 
Mr. Pretl regarding that finding on the Whiton case.  She added that she really 
couldn’t discuss his opposition any further until she spoke to him. 

 
Mr. Dashiell questioned if it was better for the Commission to 

allow time for Ms. Lanigan to discuss the opposition with Mr. Pretl or should the 
Commission proceed with the Findings adoption.  Ms. Lanigan stated that if the 
Commission was satisfied with the Findings that they could proceed with the 
vote.  Mr. Lenox stated that he wasn’t sure what Mr. Pretl was objecting to but 
that Mr. Parker would prefer to get the decision on the Findings for his client.  Mr. 
Lenox added that postponing the vote would give Mr. Day a chance to review 
them since he had requested changes at the last meeting.  Mr. Lenox explained 
that if the opposition had been available prior to the meeting, that the 
language would have been shared with the Commission and the County 
Attorney’s office. 

 
Upon a motion by Mrs. Bartkovich, seconded by Mr. Spies, 

and duly carried, the Commission TABLED the Findings of Fact for Hidden Pond 



SW PLANNING COMMISSION - MINUTES – September 15, 2011  PAGE 9 

until the October 20, 2011 meeting to allow Staff and the County Attorney time 
to review the exception submitted by the Wicomico Environmental Trust. 

 
COMMISSION DISCUSSION – DRAFT COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. 
 

Mrs. Bartkovich explained that the Council will be having a 
discussion about giving longer extensions of time on subdivision plats and 
special exceptions. 

 
Mr. Lenox stated that at the last meeting Mr. Day had 

requested to add Priority Preservation Areas (PPA’s) for discussion.  Since Mr. Day 
is satisfying his military duty, Mr. Lenox stated that the PPA discussion would take 
place at a later date.  Mr. Lenox explained that the Commission had received a 
letter from Mr. Turner which would be discussed at a later date as well. 

 
Mr. Hall stated that Staff had been reviewing Plan Maryland, 

which is the State development plan.  The State has received several thousand 
comments so far.  A forum was held at MACo regarding Plan Maryland.  MDP 
has made revisions to the original draft and there is another 60 day comment 
period which began on September 9, 2011.  State Designated Places were a big 
part of Plan Maryland.  This component has been removed from the revised 
Draft, and the State intends to work closely with local governments to delineate 
these places at a later date.  Mr. Hall stated comments had been submitted on 
the original Plan Maryland, and that Staff will be preparing comments on the 
revised Draft. 

 
Mrs. Bartkovich noted that she had attended a MACo 

meeting on September 14, 2011 in Annapolis and were reviewing Plan Maryland 
as well.  Based on the timeline, the plan is to have something to the Governor 
before the next legislative session.  Mr. Hall added the comments that were 
received during the first review are available on the MDP website.   

 
Mr. Hall discussed the Phase II WIP.  The new model run 

allocations were released on September 14, 2011.  Staff is in the process of 
analyzing the new allocations to determine the impacts for the waste water, 
septic, and stormwater sectors. 

 
  Dr. Rich Eskin, Maryland Department of the Environment, 

attended the local planning team in July to discuss the Watershed 



SW PLANNING COMMISSION - MINUTES – September 15, 2011  PAGE 10 

Implementation Plan process.  During this meeting, participants expressed 
concern about potential consequences of not meeting the nutrient reductions.  
Dr. Eskin stated to demonstrate a good faith effort that has a reasonable level of 
assurance for implementation of the two-year milestones identified as part of 
this planning effort.  Mr. Hall stated the two-year milestones, which extend to 
June 20, 2013, should be consistent with the jurisdictions FY 2012 and FY 2013 
Capital Improvement Plans.  The milestones are now due October 14, 2011.   

 
Mr. Hall expressed some of the concerns with the schedule 

associated with this planning effort.  Specifically, there is confusion amongst the 
local teams of the expected delivery dates of their two-year milestones and the 
Phase II WIP’s to the Maryland Department of the Environment.  Based on a 
correspondence from the State liaison assigned to assist the local planning 
team, it appears the State will prepare draft default Phase II WIP to submit to the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) by December 30, 2011, which the EPA 
will provide comments to the State.  The final default Plan would then be revised 
based on the comments received, and resubmitted to the EPA prior to March 
31, 2012.  Additionally, this letter appears to indicate a change in schedule for 
the local teams to submit their Phase II WIP’s to the State, which the original 
deadline of November 18, 2011 had been extended to June 30, 2012.   

 
The local team has requested clarification from our liaison 

related to these proposed changes.  Until this issue has been clarified and 
official correspondence from MDE has been provided to the local elected 
officials and the local planning teams, Mr. Hall stated the local team will 
proceed with this planning effort based on the original deadline requiring the 
submission of the two-year milestones by October 14, 2011 and the Phase II WIP 
by November 18, 2011.   Mr. Hall informed the Commissioners’ the Ag Sector 
component has changed from the County level of geography to the basin 
level, which Maryland has five (5) major basins.  Also, information presented at 
the local planning team meetings is available on the MDE website.  This includes 
agendas, meeting minutes, and presentations. 

 
Mr. Hall noted for a point of interest that the Center for 

Agroecology is sponsoring an upcoming meeting about the Phase II WIP on 
September 30, 2011 at 9 a.m. in the Guerrierri Building at Salisbury University.  The 
focus of this meeting is about the associated costs of implementing stormwater 
BMP’s. 

 



SW PLANNING COMMISSION - MINUTES – September 15, 2011  PAGE 11 

There being no further business, the Commission meeting was 
adjourned at 2:50 p.m. by Mr. Dashiell. 

 
This is a summary of the proceedings of this meeting.  

Detailed information is in the permanent files of each case as presented and 
filed in the Salisbury-Wicomico County Department of Planning, Zoning, and 
Community Development Office. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Charles “Chip” Dashiell, Chairman 
 
______________________________ 
John F. Lenox, Director 
 
_______________________________ 
Beverly R. Tull, Recording Secretary 
 


	MINUTES
	Minutes:
	Upon a motion by Mrs. Bartkovich, seconded by Mr. Robinson, and duly carried, the Commission APPROVED the minutes of the August 11, 2011 meeting as submitted.
	#WP-1103 SITE PLAN APPROVAL – Farmers Bank of Willards – To Reconstruct a Nonconforming Residence – 318 Tilghman Road – Light Business and Institutional District – M-39; G-13; P-388.
	Mr. Brock Parker and Mr. Kevin Kinnamon came forward.  Mrs. Gloria Smith presented the Staff Report.  The applicants propose reconstruction of a nonconforming residence.  The structure is nonconforming with regard to setbacks.  In addition the site is nonconforming in that it contains three apartment units.  The residence contained one unit and the attached garage contains two apartment units.  The LB1 District requires Planning Commission review and approval.
	Mr. Parker stated that the previous owner had some hardships and the Bank took the property over.  They are trying to get it fixed so that they can get some of their money back out of it.  The property was falling in on itself when the Bank took it back due to termite damage.
	Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if this property was on City services because a septic is shown on the plat.  Mr. Parker responded that the property was on well and septic.  Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if the property meets the Health Department requirements.  Mr. Parker responded that the Health Department will have to review the project, which is also a requirement of the Public Works Department in order to obtain a building permit.  Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if Health Department review and approval should be added as a condition of approval.  Mrs. Smith responded that the Commission could add it as a condition.
	Upon a motion by Mrs. Bartkovich, seconded by Mr. Robinson, and duly carried, the Commission APPROVED the Site Plan for the Farmers Bank of Willards for reconstruction of a nonconforming residence at 318 Tilghman Road, subject to the following Conditions of Approval:
	CONDITIONS:
	1. This site shall be developed in accordance with the approved Site Plan.  Minor plan adjustments may be approved by the Wicomico County Zoning Administrator.  However, a change of use shall be considered a new use and shall be reviewed and approved by the Commission.
	2. This approval is subject to further review and approval by the Wicomico County Department of Public Works, if required.
	3. This approval is subject to further review and approval by the Wicomico County Health Department.
	COUNTY SUBDIVISION PLAT/SKETCH PLATS:
	Sandywood Estates – Extension to Record – 16 Lots – Forest Grove Road – M-40; P-45; G-3.
	#SP-0513-11A REVSIED CERTIFICATE OF DESIGN & SITE PLAN APPROVAL -  Residences at River’s Edge – Fitzwater Street – Riverfront Redevelopment Multi-Use District #2 – M-106; G-21; P-1109.
	Mr. Goodman stated that they had received a schematic plan of the original approval and wanted to work with the existing plan.  He stated that they would like to amend the South building to have 50 two-bedroom units instead of 33 three-bedroom units and amend the Mooring building from 56 units to 64 units, all using the same footprint.  Due to the parking deficit, the pool and cabana area will be deleted to provide additional parking.  This will still leave a deficit of approximately 25 spaces.  Mr. Goodman asked for suggestions on how to handle the parking shortage.  He added that they would be utilizing the existing landscaping plan.
	Mr. Hamilton stated that utilizing the original footprint seemed to be the most simplistic way to proceed with the project.  He questioned if the sidewalk on the East side of the property could be shifted 10 or 12 feet to achieve more parking.
	Mr. Dashiell stated that the Commission was treating this as a concept plan and wouldn’t take a vote but would offer suggestions on the project.  He added that this would be an improvement to the property.
	Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if the existing building was the SouthView.  Mr. Hamilton responded in the affirmative.  Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if a structural engineer had checked the building for soundness since it had been there since 2008.  Mr. Hamilton responded that the building had been evaluated by a structural engineer and the steel will need to be recoated but the existing shell will be utilized.  Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if there were plans to tidy up the property.  Mr. Hamilton responded that there had been someone contracted to keep the property up.  They didn’t realize that the contractor hadn’t been keeping up the property so a new landscaper has been contracted and should be on site in the next few days to clean the property.  Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if there would be a dumpster area.  Mr. Rogers stated that the dumpster area was shown on the plat on the east side of the property.  Mrs. Bartkovich stated that apartment buildings require recycling containers.  Mr. Spies added that there would be at least three (3) containers needed for recycling.  Mrs. Bartkovich stated that she had concern regarding Fire Department access.  Mr. Hamilton responded that they had a letter from the Fire Department from the original approval that they could access the complex.  Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if there was enough handicapped parking.  Mr. Rogers stated that all the handicapped spaces were van accessible.  Mrs. Bartkovich questioned if there was a landscaping plan.  Mrs. Smith responded that there was an existing landscaping plan.
	Mr. Spies questioned if there were large shade trees.  Mr. Goodman responded that the original plan has trees from the street to the river on the west side of the property.  Mrs. Smith read the original plant list.  Mr. Spies requested that the developers be aware of how close to the water they were in regards to filtration from the trees.  Mr. Spies questioned the pervious surfaces.  Mr. Hamilton responded that there shouldn’t be any changes to the pervious surfaces.  Mr. Rogers questioned if they had considered using pervious surfaces for parking.  Mr. Hamilton responded that they had spoken with a contractor in regards to pervious surfaces.
	Mrs. Bartkovich questioned the bulkhead.  Mr. Hamilton responded that they understood that there were certain types of plants that were required for bulkheads.
	Mr. Rogers questioned if they were going to continue with the commercial aspect of the plan.  Mr. Goodman responded that they would like to try for approximately five (5) commercial units.  Mr. Rogers responded that it would be tricky to get delivery access for those units.
	Mr. Dashiell reiterated that they would need to present a preliminary plan for the Commission to vote on.
	Mr. Goodman questioned if there was a way to obtain a variance for 15 to 20 parking spaces if they were able to get additional parking on the east side of the Mooring building.  Mr. Dashiell responded that they should pay attention to what is required by the Code and then discuss a variance with the Staff.
	Mr. Lenox requested clarification if there was still parking planned underneath the buildings.  Mr. Hamilton responded in the affirmative.  Mr. Lenox suggested that the developers try for a parking lease agreement with the adjacent property owners to rectify the parking shortage.  Mr. Hamilton responded that he had spoken with the City about the adjacent property.  Mr. Lenox clarified that those discussions had been with City Administration and that anything regarding the adjacent parcel would have to go before the City Council.  Mr. Lenox stated that the City would like to see the project proceed.  He advised the developers that staying as close to possible with the approved plan would prevent any problems with the new stormwater management regulations.
	There being no further business, the Commission meeting was adjourned at 2:50 p.m. by Mr. Dashiell.

